
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING AUGUST 15, 2012    Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY AUGUST 15, 2012  7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE CALIFORNIA 92252 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT: At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the 
Board’s jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone. The Board may not 
discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda.   
During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 
information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and 
appreciates your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
 

 
 
 
Pg 1-4 
Pg 5-7 
Pg 8 
Pg 9-11 
Pg 12-14 
Pg 15-31 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will be adopted in 
total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any individual or organization interested 
in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Minutes of the July 18, 2012 Regular Board Meeting 
B. Approve Minutes of the August 1, 2012 Regular Board Meeting 
C. Approve Minutes of the August 8, 2012 Special Board Meeting 
D. Approve the Financial Report for May 2012 
E. Approve the Financial Report for June 2012 
F. Approve the Check Audit Report for July 2012 

 
Pg 32-33 7. AWARD OF BID FOR PACKAGE WASTE WATER TREATMENT PLANT AT HI DESERT 

MEDICAL CENTER (HDMC) 
Recommend that the Board Award a contract to Van Dyke Plumbing in the amount of $1,998,000 
contingent upon the receipt of $2,410,100 from the HDMC (including construction, construction 
management, and 10% contingency); reject all other bids; authorize Dudek Engineering to provide 
construction management services at an estimated cost of $193,000; authorize a 10% contingency of 
$219,100; increase the budget for the project to $2,410,100 based on the above costs. 
 

Pg 34-37 8. REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR OFFICE SPACE NEEDS 
Recommend that the Board receive this report for information and any comments. 
 

 9. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING AUGUST 15, 2012    Page 2 of 2 
 

  A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Long: Kathleen 
Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report 

B. AD HOC GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATION COMMITTEE: President 
Reynolds and Director Long: 

C. AD HOC STRATEGIC PLAN COMMITTEE:  Director Coate and Director Long 
D. AD HOC UTILITY SERVICES CONTRACT COMMITEEE: Director Coate and Director Long 
E. AD HOC RECHARGE COMMITTEE:  Director Long and Director Coate 
F. AD HOC ENGINEERING COMMITTEE: Director Coate and Director Long 
 

 10. PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s jurisdiction that are not 
listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board may not discuss at length or take action on 
items not on the agenda. 
 

 11. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 12. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

 13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 14. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 15. CLOSED SESSION 
A. At this time the Board will go into closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 

in order for the Board to consult with and instruct the Board's Ad Hoc Negotiation Committee 
(Mike Reynolds and Bill Long), which is acting as the Board's designated representative and is 
charged with the responsibility of negotiating a new Employment Agreement with the District's 
General Manager.  

B. At this time the Board will go into closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.8, Conference with Real Property Negotiator regarding price and terms. District 
negotiator: Joe Guzzetta.  APN  603-231-14; negotiator, Barbara Moreland. 

 

 16. ADJOURNMENT 
 

INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 
District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
 

This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on August 22 at 7:00 pm and August 29 at 7:00 pm. 
 

DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office  
and at the Joshua Tree Library. 



 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

July 18, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:02 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 
Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 9 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to approve the agenda for the July 18, 2012 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Steven Whitman of Joshua Tree commented he feels that the meeting minutes and check registers do not 

provide enough detail.   
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Director Wilson requested that item “B” of the Consent Calendar, “Approve June 2012 Check Audit 

Report” be pulled for discussion. He asked about expenses noted for the Washington DC trip, for a 
project on Hacienda, and for an encroachment permit. General Manager Guzzetta stated he would look 
into these. 

It was clarified that an expense noted as “Business Card” referred to a payment on the District credit card 
balance, not to a purchase of business cards. 

MSC Long/Reynolds 5/0 to approve the minutes of the June 20, 2012 regular Board meeting and to approve 
the June 2012 check audit report. 

 
7. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH JT CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

REGARDING WATER SUPPLY TO THE PROPOSED TURTLE ISLAND COMMERCIAL 
DEMONSTRATION GARDEN 

General Manager Joe Guzzetta is the District’s representative to the Chamber of Commerce and left the 
room during discussion of this item to avoid any appearance of conflict.  Assistant General 



Manager/Controller Susan Greer reported staff has worked with District Counsel, the Ad Hoc Turtle 
Island Committee of President Reynolds and Vice President Luckman and Joshua Tree Chamber of 
Commerce President Eva Soltes to work out the details of the proposed MOU. AGM/Controller Greer 
reviewed the terms of the proposed agreement. 

District Legal Counsel Gil Granito suggested that Section 1A be modified to read: “JBWD will provide said 
water including any fixes meter fees, cost free up to a total maximum sum of $1,000.00 per fiscal year 
starting July 1, 2012…” 

Steven Whitman of Joshua Tree commented the main issue is protecting the District from liability; he stated 
that ten property owners are involved. 

Eva Soltes of the JT Chamber commented that each of the property owners has submitted a contract stating 
that they have liability insurance; the Chamber also has insurance and can designate the District as 
conditionally insured, and the contractor has insurance.   

District Legal Counsel Gil Granito stated that the MOU could be approved conditionally upon provision of 
insurance by the Joshua Tree Chamber of Commerce, approval of the District’s insurance carrier, 
Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority, and changing the effective 
date of the MOU from July 1, 2012 to August 1, 2012. 

Director Wilson asked how much legal counsel charged; he noted that Vice President Luckman is a member 
of the Joshua Tree Chamber of Commerce and asked if she should vote on the issue. Vice President 
Luckman stated she is not a member of the Chamber. Mr. Granito stated that Vice President Luckman 
would not be disqualified from voting on the issue. 

Director Coate stated that this event may set a precedent and others may want the same consideration in the 
future. Vice President Luckman stated that the Turtle Island project is an adjunct to the District’s 
conservation demonstration garden 

President Reynolds stated the purpose of the project is to represent conservation. Mr. Granito stated this 
would not be considered a gift of public funds because the intent is to foster the District’s goal of 
conservation and therefore is a ‘quid pro quo’ situation.  

MSC Luckman/Long   4/1 to approve the recommendation to approve the memorandum of understanding 
with the Joshua Tree Chamber of Commerce conditionally upon provision of insurance by the Joshua 
Tree Chamber of Commerce, approval of the District’s insurance carrier, Association of California Water 
Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority, and changing the effective date of the MOU from July 1, 
2012 to August 1, 2012, and to authorize waiver of Article 2.7 of the Joshua Basin Water District Rules 
and Regulations requiring individual meters on all parcels. 

   Coate  Aye 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
8. APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STAFF TO APPLY FOR DEPARTMENT OF 

WATER RESOURCES GRANT FOR MONITORING WELL 
GM Guzzetta returned to the meeting and reported that the grant proposal is for a monitoring well for the 

Groundwater Recharge Project. 
During discussion it was noted that an existing monitoring well is at a depth of 500 feet; if grant funds are 

awarded the new monitoring well will go to a depth of 1,000 feet. USGS recommended the deeper 
monitoring well.Vice President Luckman stated she has a high regard for USGS and the District should 
follow their recommendation, especially if grant funding is awarded to cover the cost. 

MSC Long/Luckman  4/1 to approve staff recommendation to adopt Resolution 12-890 authorizing 
submittal of a grant in the amount of $250,000 for an additional monitoring well at the ground water 
recharge site. 



   Coate  Aye 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 
9. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Long; Kathleen 
Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant reported JBWD will host The ABCs of Water on November 8 
at the Joshua Tree Community Center; the topic is greywater.  The Public Information Committee 
will meet on July 23rd to work on expansion of the District website. 

B. AD HOC GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATION COMMITTEE: President 
Reynolds and Director Long: No report. 

C. AD HOC STRATEGIC PLAN COMMITTEE: Director Coate and Director Long: Director Coate 
reported the committee has received the draft document from Martin Rauch; it is not in final form 
and is being reviewed by the committee.  

D. AD HOC UTILITY SERVICES CONTRACT COMMITTEE:  Director Coate and Director Long:   
Director Long reported the committee met recently with Mr. Guzzetta. GM Guzzetta reported staff 
met today with Utility Services and is working on specifications so District legal counsel can draft a 
new contract; the company has new staff who will oversee the contract.   

E. AD HOC RECHARGE COMMITTEE: Director Long and Director Coate: Director Coate reported 
the committee met and there are still a few issues with Fish and Game and CalTRANS permitting. 
GM Guzzetta commented that District engineers have addressed all comments from CalTRANS. 

 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Jay St. Gaudens of Joshua Tree commented in favor of a deep monitoring well for the recharge project. 
 
11. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
GM Guzzetta gave a status update on grants that have been awarded to the District. He stated that the 

importance of meeting minutes is to record the actions of the Board and the District for many years has 
recorded minute actions and included only a brief description of discussions in the minutes.         

 
12. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
District Legal Counsel Gil Granito stated that a closed session would be required for item 15b only.  He 

provided information on the Ellis litigation, the proposed Cadiz project, the recently proposed casino 
project, proposed suspension of the Brown Act, and the Yorba Linda litigation. 

 
13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
None requested. 
 
14. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Wilson commented that the Morongo Basin Pipeline Commission met and recommended that the 

tax rate be increased.  
Director Long commented that a deep test well is a good idea to measure the percolation rate at deeper 

levels.  He noted that Golden State is a private water agency in Morongo Valley and is not required to 
have public board meetings; JBWD is a special district and is required to have public board meetings. He 
explained that the tax rate increases due to property values decreasing 



GM Guzzetta noted that rate for bond payments is fixed; adjustments occur when property values change. 
Vice President Luckman stated that from the report it appears that some board members don’t attend many 

meetings; she noted that some directors attend many meetings to represent the District and do not collect 
compensation for all meetings attended. 

 
15. CLOSED SESSION 
A. Closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 to consult with and instruct the Board's 

Ad Hoc Negotiation Committee (Mike Reynolds and Bill Long), which is acting as the Board's 
designated representative and is charged with the responsibility of negotiating a new Employment 
Agreement with the District's General Manager. 

B. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Conference with Real Property 
Negotiator  regarding price and terms. District negotiator: Joe Guzzetta. APN 603.231.14; negotiator, 
Barbara Moreland. 

Closed session began at 8:16 pm and the meeting resumed in open session at 8:30 pm. 
It was reported that the board provided instruction to the District negotiator, Joe Guzzetta, concerning 
property as noticed on agenda item 15B.  
 
19. ADJOURNMENT    
The meeting was adjourned at 8:35 pm. 
 
 Respectfully submitted: 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for August 1, 2012 at 7:00 pm. 
 



 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

August 1, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 
Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
Randy Mayes, Senior Administrative Assistant 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 9 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Long/Luckman 5/0 to approve the agenda for the August 1, 2012 Regular Board Meeting. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented that it has been reported that grant funding for the Recharge Project 

has been awarded, but he believes the District has not yet received the funds. 
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to approve scheduling a Special Board meeting for August 8, 2012 to set the tax 

rate for Improvement District #2. 
 
7. PRESENTATION OF SEMS SOFTWARE 
General Manager Guzzetta introduced Senior Administrative Assistant Randy Mayes who gave a 

presentation on the Security Environmental Management Software and explained how the software is 
used and how it benefits the District. 

 

8.      CONSIDERATION OF CREDIT FOR CUSTOMER METER 
Keith Faul reported that the prospective buyer of the property had been advised that a meter was located on 

the property; however it was later discovered that there was no water service to the property. The 
individual purchased the property based on the information that water service was in place; a meter has 
been requested to serve the parcel. 

 



MSC Long/Luckman  5/0 to approve staff recommendation to authorize waiver of the Capacity Charge of 
$3,608 and the Meter Installation Fee of $1,603 for property 0608-012-14. 

 
9. WATER BILL FORMATTING CHANGES 
Assistant General Manager/Controller Susan Greer reported for the Public Information Committee, that the 

Committee has proposed several changes to the customer water bill format in order to provide 
conservation information and improve transparency. Implementation of the suggested changes will 
require programming of the District’s billing software at an initial cost of about $7,000. 

Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented opposing the cost of changes to the bill format. 
Dale Pelton, property owner, commented in favor of the suggested changes to the water bill. 
MSC Long/Luckman 3/2 to approve the recommendation to authorize programming changes at an estimated 

one-time cost of $7,000 plus ongoing support costs of $1,250 per year. 
   Coate  No 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 
10. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Long; Kathleen 
Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant reported the farmers market theme for August is “Ground 
Control and H2O”; the Public Information Committee is working on “branding” the water district; the 
District is hosting a landscape irrigation workshop at Home Depot August 22nd.  

B. AD HOC GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATION COMMITTEE: President 
Reynolds and Director Long: President Reynolds reported the Ad Hoc committee met today and will 
bring a recommendation to the Board in closed session at the next board meeting. 

C. AD HOC STRATEGIC PLAN COMMITTEE: Director Coate and Director Long: No report. 
D. AD HOC UTILITY SERVICES CONTRACT COMMITTEE:  Director Coate and Director Long:   

No report.   
E. AD HOC RECHARGE COMMITTEE: Director Long and Director Coate: No report. 
F. AD HOC ENGINEERING COMMITTEE: Director Coate and Director Long: No report. 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented that Mojave Water Agency will increase property taxes after 

September. 
 
12. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
GM Guzzetta reported that a review of the tax increase was given at the last Board meeting; the reason the 

tax has gone up is because property values have gone down.  
Fencing is being installed at the recharge basin site. Discussions with Mojave Water Agency and the state 

regarding grant funding are ongoing; documents are being prepared by the state.  Bids were received for 
the Hi Desert Medical Center wastewater treatment plant and have been reviewed by District engineers. 
The HDMC board is expected to receive information at their meeting on August 14th; the item will then 
be brought to JBWD Board on August 15th.   

 
13. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
District Counsel Gil Granito gave an update on the outcome of the Yorba Linda fire litigation, and reported 



attending meetings about Cadiz water. 
 
14. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Vice President Luckman requested a presentation on the new pressure reducing station. 
 
15. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Long commented grant funds have been discussed several times. 
Vice President Luckman thanked GM Guzzetta for explaining about the pipeline tax rate and about the grant 

funds.  Vice President Luckman reported on attending the Mojave Water Agency Board meeting 
Director Coate reported will submit his candidacy papers on August 8th for the upcoming election. 
 
16. CLOSED SESSION 
There was no Closed Session. 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT    
The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 pm. 
 
 Respectfully submitted: 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for August 15, 2012 at 7:00 pm. 
 



 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

August 8, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 
Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 

GUESTS   2  
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 approve the agenda for the August 8, 2012 Special Board Meeting. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
6. SET TAX RATE FOR IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #2 
Assistant General Manager/Controller Susan Greer reported this is a routine item considered by the Board 

each year. She noted that assessed values are down and the tax rate has gone up. 
Al Marquez commented he has information from the County of San Bernardino shows some property 

values have increased however Yucca Valley has decreased .7% in the last year.  
MSC Long/Luckman 5/0  to approve staff recommendation to approve Resolution 12-891 increasing the 

property tax rate for Improvement District #2 from $0.0240 to $0.0256 per $100 of assessed valuation. 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT   7:07 PM 
MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to adjourn the August 8, 2012 Special meeting of the Board of Directors 
 
 Respectfully submitted: 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for August 15, 2012 at 7:00 pm. 
 

















































JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors       August 15, 2012 
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
From:  Joe Guzzetta, General Manager  
 
TOPIC: AWARD OF BID FOR PACKAGE WASTE WATER TREATMENT 

PLANT AT HI DESERT MEDICAL CENTER  
 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board take the following action: 
1)  Award a contract to Van Dyke Plumbing in the amount 

of $1,998,000 contingent upon the receipt of 
$2,410,100 from the Hi Desert Medical Center (which 
includes the construction, construction management, 
and 10% contingency); 

2) Reject all other bids; 
3) Authorize Dudek Engineering to provide construction 

management services for the project at an estimated 
cost of $193,000; 

4) Authorize a 10% contingency of $219,100 ($199,800 for 
construction and $19,300 for construction 
management); 

5) Increase the budget for the project to $2,410,100 based 
on the above costs; 

 
ANALYSIS: Bids for the Package Waste Water Treatment Plant at Hi 

Desert Medical Center have been opened.  The low bid from 
Van Dyke Plumbing of Twentynine Palms has been verified as 
complete by the District Engineer, including appropriate 
bonding and insurance. 
 
The agreement between HDMC and JBWD requires HDMC to 
place $2,410,100 with the District at the time the award is bid.  
Therefore notice will not be given of the award until the funds 
are received.  Funds will be placed in JBWD’s Local Agency 
Investment Funds with HDMC receiving the earned interest. 
 
The recommended action is consistent with the agreement 
between JBWD and HDMC and will result in construction of the 
District’s first package waste water treatment plant. 
 
Construction is expected to take about one year.  Attached are 
the engineer’s report and the schedule of bids received.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

 



JOSHUA BASIN TREATMENT PLANT No. 1 BIDDING RESULTS

Item EOPCC Van Dyke Corp. Pyramid Builders  Sema Constructors Cora Contractors Newest Construction
No. Bid Item
1 General Requirements: Bonds, Insurance incl. 40,000.00$                         65,000.00$                         40,000.00$                         30,000.00$                         26,000.00$                        
2 Mobilization/Demobilization 86,790.00$               90,000.00$                        60,000.00$                        110,000.00$                      45,000.00$                        86,000.00$                       
3 Excavation Safety Measures incl. 25,000.00$                        5,000.00$                          10,000.00$                        8,000.00$                          15,000.00$                       
4 Site Work 120,450.00$             145,000.00$                      165,000.00$                      480,000.00$                      250,000.00$                      185,000.00$                     
5 Yard Piping incl. 95,000.00$                        110,000.00$                      195,000.00$                      110,000.00$                      142,000.00$                     
6 Sewer Line Connection 143,880.00$             108,000.00$                      110,000.00$                      106,000.00$                      90,000.00$                        156,000.00$                     
7 Equalization Tank  98,670.00$               82,000.00$                        90,000.00$                        230,000.00$                      60,000.00$                        148,000.00$                     
8 Mechanical Portion of Equalization Tank incl. 140,000.00$                      115,000.00$                      110,000.00$                      100,000.00$                      133,000.00$                     
9 Packaged Treatment Plant 705,285.00$             780,000.00$                      790,000.00$                      300,000.00$                      700,000.00$                      851,000.00$                     
10 Disposal System Including Seepage Pits 289,300.00$             135,000.00$                      280,000.00$                      395,678.00$                      500,000.00$                      273,000.00$                     
11 Installation of Control Building 110,220.00$             125,000.00$                      200,050.00$                      200,000.00$                      180,000.00$                      206,000.00$                     
12 Electrical Instrumentation and Controls 217,910.00$             218,000.00$                      200,025.00$                      35,000.00$                        210,000.00$                      226,000.00$                     
13 Testing Startup Comissioning and Turnover incl. 50,000.00$                        5,000.00$                          42,000.00$                        7,000.00$                          11,000.00$                       
14 As‐Built Record Drawings incl. 10,000.00$                        5,000.00$                          9,700.00$                          1,000.00$                          1,000.00$                         

Last Minute Deductions 45,000.00$                       
1,772,505.00$          1,998,000.00$                   2,200,075.00$                   2,263,378.00$                   2,291,000.00$                   2,459,000.00$                  

Item EOPCC Pacific Hydrotech Metro Builders R.C. Foster Co. Intgrtd Water Services
No. Bid Item
1 General Requirements: Bonds, Insurance incl. 40,000.00$                         45,000.00$                         42,000.00$                         49,330.00$                        
2 Mobilization/Demobilization 86,790.00$               169,200.00$                      120,000.00$                      62,000.00$                        120,738.00$                     
3 Excavation Safety Measures incl. 1,000.00$                          120,000.00$                      5,000.00$                          23,031.00$                       
4 Site Work 120,450.00$             155,800.00$                      120,000.00$                      150,000.00$                      235,116.00$                     
5 Yard Piping incl. 106,700.00$                      100,000.00$                      99,000.00$                        145,375.00$                     
6 Sewer Line Connection 143,880.00$             171,800.00$                      150,000.00$                      280,000.00$                      121,608.00$                     
7 Equalization Tank  98,670.00$               94,100.00$                        150,000.00$                      198,000.00$                      166,023.00$                     
8 Mechanical Portion of Equalization Tank incl. 64,400.00$                        120,000.00$                      94,300.00$                        154,990.00$                     
9 Packaged Treatment Plant 705,285.00$             843,100.00$                      1,000,000.00$                   952,000.00$                      885,051.00$                     
10 Disposal System Including Seepage Pits 289,300.00$             390,500.00$                      190,000.00$                      310,000.00$                      305,722.00$                     
11 Installation of Control Building 110,220.00$             217,200.00$                      170,000.00$                      197,000.00$                      245,796.00$                     
12 Electrical Instrumentation and Controls 217,910.00$             198,000.00$                      175,000.00$                      194,000.00$                      204,908.00$                     
13 Testing Startup Comissioning and Turnover incl. 4,700.00$                          18,750.00$                        3,200.00$                          53,413.00$                       
14 As‐Built Record Drawings incl. 600.00$                              6,250.00$                          1,200.00$                          8,777.00$                         

Last Minute Deductions (20,000.00)$                      
1,772,505.00$          2,477,100.00$                   2,485,000.00$                   2,587,700.00$                   2,719,878.00$                  



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors       August 15, 2012  
 
Report to: Members of the Board 
From: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
TOPIC: REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

FOR OFFICE SPACE NEEDS 
 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board receive this report for information and any 
comments. 
 

ANALYSIS: One of the Board’s priorities noted in the Strategic Plan is to 
“conduct a facilities plan and assessment to identify space 
needs, estimated costs, etc for a new or upgraded 
headquarters building.” 
 
The current budget has $10,000 for these services.  The 
attached Request for Proposals limits the initial phase to 
$5,000.  Staff intends to select an architect for this phase who 
could be used for further phases without a further selection 
process if the District is successful in receiving grants or 
identifies other funding sources.  
 
The District will also look for the opportunity to apply for 
funding for an Emergency Operating Center (EOC).  To do so, 
a preliminary architectural plan is needed to determine the 
square footage required and how the Center could be 
incorporated into the existing building. 
 
There is currently no space in the building that is suitable for 
hanging maps and screens, setting up desks, phones, and 
other facilities needed in a serious emergency.  An EOC could 
provide space for those facilities as well as some office space 
for the District’s part-time Emergency Services Officer and 
Safety/Security Officer. 
 

 



REQUEST FOR PRELIMINARY ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

 
 
Joshua Basin Water District seeks architectural services to review the existing facilities and 
generate a space allocation study and new office floor plan required to meet the changing spatial 
needs of the Joshua Basin Water District, (District) located at 71750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, 
CA 92252.  The primary purpose is to improve the efficiency of the existing space and to 
establish the requirements for workspace for an Emergency Operations Center in order to apply 
for federal funding for an Emergency Operations Center. 
  
The proposed scope of work includes reviewing existing plans and facilities, meeting with staff, 
preparing as-built floor plans, and quantifying the district’s office and spatial needs. This study 
will result in the preparation of a conceptual floor plan to convey an efficient layout for the 
optimization of the existing space in order to for improve efficiency and to provide a cohesive 
layout of office space, working cubicles and storage in the building housing District offices. The 
existing space consists of approximately 5,000 square feet of interior space and 1,000 square feet 
of exterior enclosed storage space. 
 
Following the Conceptual Plans that are the subject of this Request for Services, the District 
may, but will not be required to contract with Architect to provide architectural services for the 
detailed design and other further phases of the project if the District decides to proceed with 
further architectural work. 
  
The existing facilities include the general manager’s office, kitchen, two accounting offices, 
vault, assistant general manager’s office, general office floor area, restrooms, connecting 
hallway,  cashier area, human resource manager’s officer, copy and computer server room, board 
room, engineering service office, and outdoor storage building. 
  
Fee for these services is not expected to exceed $5,000.00 to generate the space allocation study, 
record drawings, interview users of the facility and prepare spatial allocation recommendations 
for approval of the stakeholders and prepare a schematic floor plan document and outline 
specifications (furnishings, daylight strategies, etc) for review and approval by the District. 
 
  
Architectural services include reviewing District-provided documentation, consultation with the 
County of San Bernardino regarding permitting issues and other developmental restrictions of all 
regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the project. In addition, professional services 
include schematic design, and other instruments of service. The scope of work can generally be 
described as follows 
 
1 Project Scope  

1.1 Scope of this project is to provide a space allocation study and pre-design services for 
an Emergency Operations Center and the remodel of District office building.  

 
1.2 Pre-design services should include the following items.  



 
a.   Review existing building plans and related documents.  
b.  Meet with District employees to understand and quantify their physical and 

spatial needs to increase district operational efficiency.  
c.   Present findings and recommendations to the District.  
d. Following review of the spatial analysis and related findings and 

recommendations, the District will provide direction to the selected 
architect regarding allocation and prioritization to meet the identified 
spatial requirements  

e.   Preparation of a conceptual floor plan.  
 

1.3 The budget for the phases of the architectural project identified in this Request for 
Proposals is not to exceed $5,000. The budget may be revised to meet scope of work 
requested by the District.  

 
1.4 Architect will develop record “as-built” drawings based on existing measurements 

and existing conditions, which will be drafted in AutoCAD so it can be used to 
generate a demolition plan and the base drawings for the proposed design.  

 
1.5 Architect will provide Conceptual Design documents for the project to ascertain the 

new interior planning layout, at a conceptual level for District’s approval.  
 

1.6 Architect will identify and advise District on the need for any geotechnical 
engineering, civil engineering and the services of a licensed landscape architect. 
District will be responsible for the cost to retain any services of a geotechnical 
consultant, civil engineer or landscape architect.  

 
1.7 District will provide available documentation such as existing drawings.  

 
1.8 Proposal should identify the number of working sessions anticipated with the District 

during the project to finalize the scope of work, meet with district staff to discuss and 
understand their individual and unique workplace spatial needs, develop and review 
the preliminary design, and perform revisions adequate to achieve the District’s 
approval of the conceptual design of the project.  

 
1.9  Architect shall propose phasing and a general schedule for completion of the work 

subject to this proposal. 
 
3 Conceptual Design Documents  

Architect will prepare a conceptual floor plan based upon the mutually agreed-upon program. 
The drawings shall establish the conceptual design of the project illustrating the scale and 
relationship of the project components. The Conceptual Design Documents shall include a 
conceptual floor plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations.  

 
4 Professional Fee  



 The budget for this phase of the project is $5,000.  The proposal shall include a “not-to-
exceed” amount for the above services.  Proposal shall include a rate and fee schedule for 
professional services not described above, but requested by the District. 

 
The proposal shall identify any reimbursable expenses with an estimated budget for 
reimbursable expenses that will cause the project to exceed $5,000. 
 
The proposal shall identify any additional services that the architect believes should be 
considered with this proposal, and the costs for such services. 

 
5  Submittal and Selection Process 
       

Proposals for services must be submitted by _________ to Joshua Basin Water District, 
61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92252.  Questions may be submitted to Joe Guzzetta, 
General Manager, 760-366-2042 extension 226. 
 
District staff will review the proposals.  District may select an architect from the proposals 
submitted or may select a “short-list” of firms to interview for final selection. 

 


	SR HDMC Van Dyke Award of Bid 8 15 12 FINAL (2).pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT

	SR Architectural services 8 15 12.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT




